WHITE’S HISTORY, GAZETTEER AND DIRECTORY OF STAFFORDSHIRE, 1851

GRINDON, 8 miles E. by S. of Leek, is an indifferently built village, occupying a high moorland situation between the Hamps and Manyfold rivers, which unite their streams in a subterraneous channel, about one mile to the east. The parish contains 404 inhabitants, and 3186 acres 2 roods 19 perches of land, in two nearly equal divisions, called Grindon town and Grindon township, which form one of the Alstonfield Incorported townships, (see page 742,) and include the small hamlets of DEEPDALE, ½ mile S.; FORD, in the romantic vale of the Hamps, 1 mile W.; HILLSDALE, ½ mile N.W.; and MARTIN’S LOWE, 1 mile S. of Grindon; together with a number of scattered houses, among which is Onecote Hall, a farm house, belonging to the Earl of Macclesfield.  Two-thirds of the parish belong to the Henniker family.  The Church (All Saints,) was rebuilt in 1848-‘9, and is a handsome structure, with a lofty spire, three bells, and an organ.  The rectory, valued in K.B. at £15. 14s. 2d., and now at  £314, is in the patronaage of Mrs. Bradshaw, and incumbency of the Rev. H. J. Stokes, M.A., who has a good residence, built by the late rector in 1834, and 32 acres of glebe.  The tithes were commuted in 1843, for £372 per annum.  The free school was founded in 1724, by Humphrey Hall and the Rev. S. Norton, for the education of ten poor children.  It is endowed with land and buildings worth £25 a year, for which the master teaches 32 free scholars.  The poor of Grindon and Butterton have £15 yearly, from land left by Ruth Stubbs in 1693; and those of Grindon have 18 shillings yearly, from £20 left by Thomas Titterton in 1745.  The wake is on the nearest Sunday to All Saints’ Day.


GRINDON TOWN 

Alcock Robert, blacksmith
Burnett Sarah and Martha, shopkeepers

Derbyshire Thomas, wheelwright, etc

Moss Thomas, victualler, Shoulder of Mutton

Mycock John, shoemaker, Bull’s Head

Smith Mr Thomas 

Wint Joseph, parish clerk

Stokes Rev. Henry John, M.A., rector

Farmers

Birch William

Burnett John

Burnett William

Burnett James

Burnett Martha

Chadwick Thomas

Lowndes William

Gould John

Howson Charles

Jerrard Thomas

Mycock John

Plant Hannah

Simpson James

Smith Charles

Smith John

Titterton William

Woolliscroft John

GRINDON TOWNSHIP

Marked 1 reside at Bullclough, 2 Felthouse, 3 Ford, 4 Green head, 5 Hillsdale, 6 

Martin’s low, 7 Moorgate, 8 Onecote Hall, 9 Pen, and 10 at Twiss

3 Beardmore Susan, corn miller

3 Edge Thomas, butcher

6 Mycock George, shoemaker, etc

3 Richardson Zachariah, schoolmaster

9 Stoddard James, shopkeeper

Farmers

5 Bellfield William

5 Berrisford William

2 Birch Ralph

6 Bould Henry

8 Burnett Thomas

4 Cantrell Joseph

10 Gould Isaac

3 Hall Richard

4 Harrison Thomas

7 Meakin Joseph

1 Moseley Thomas

7 Poyser Thomas

3 Ravensdale Thomas and William

9 Smith Emanuel

3 Smith James

3 Smith Daniel

9 Stoddard James

6 Stubbs John

